
Questions?  Please contact RVCOG at 541-664-6674.  If assistance is needed to participate in this meeting, 
please notify us at least 24 hours prior to the meeting to assist staff in providing reasonable accommodation. 

AGENDA 
Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Board of Directors 
 

 
Date: Wednesday, January 25, 2017 
Board Meeting: 12:00 noon 
Location: Rogue Valley Council of Governments Jefferson Conference Room 
  
 
1. Call to Order / Attendance ......................................................................................................................Chair 
 
2. Introductions and Comments from Members / Public .........................................................................Chair 

 
3. Consent Calendar.....................................................................................................................................Chair 

Approve Minutes of December 7, 2016 Meeting 
 

4. Discussion/Presentation .....................................................................................................Executive Director 
A. 2015-2016 CAFR 
B. Appointment of a New Member to the Senior Advisory Council 
C. Medford ComicCon 2017 
 

5. Reports ................................................................................................................................Executive Director 
A. Food & Friends Josephine County – Update  
B. Solar Installation Update 
C. Newly Elected Officials Orientation Update 
D. RVCOG Annual Update 
E. Receivables Report / Balance Sheet / Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

 
6. Regional Update / Open Air ........................................................................................................................ All 
 
7. Agenda Build ............................................................................................................................................Chair 

 
8. Other Business ..........................................................................................................................................Chair 
 
9. Next Meeting .............................................................................................................................................Chair 

The next meeting will be held in RVCOG’s conference room on Wednesday, February 22, 2016. 
 

Adjournment 

http://cal.rvcog.org/month.php
http://rvcog.org/mn.asp?pg=Contact_us


Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Summary Minutes from the December 7, 2016 Meeting 
 
VOTING MEMBERS 
Present: 
Councilor Mike Morris (City of Ashland)  Commissioner Colleen Roberts (JACO) 
Councilor Rick Samuelson (City of Central Point) Councilor Roy Lindsay (City of Grants Pass)                 
Mayor Pam VanArsdale (City of Rogue River)  Board Member Bill Mansfield (RVTD)                          
Director Carol Doty (JCLD)    Board Member Kay Harrison (RVS) 
Mayor Jan Fish (City of Gold Hill)   Councilor Dick Gordon (City of Medford) 
Councilor Jim Lewis (City of Jacksonville)  Mayor Bob Russell (Eagle Point)                                    
Mayor Jeff Bellah (City of Phoenix) 
 
Absent: 
Butte Falls Representative    Shady Cove Representative 
Cave Junction Representative    SOU Representative 
RCC Representative     ECSO 
Talent Representative     JSWCD Representative 
SOREDI Representative     JOCO Representative 
 
NON-VOTING MEMBERS 
Ian Horlacher (ODOT) 
 
RVCOG STAFF: 
Michael Cavallaro  Donovan Edwards  Laura O’Bryon 
Ann Marie Alfrey  Cindy Shindell   
 
1.  Call to Order/Attendance 
President Lewis called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m. and asked for roll call. 
 
2.  Introductions, Service Awards and Comments from Members/Public 
President Lewis introduced Karl Welzenbach, RVCOG Planning Program Manager.   
Michael Cavallaro, RVCOG Executive Director explained that due to elections it becomes inevitable that 
there are losses on the Board and he wanted to take a few moments to thank the each of the Board 
members for their contributions to their respective communities and the Board during their time in 
service.  Mr. Cavallaro presented plaques to Rick Samuelson Jr, Councilmember from Central Point; Jeff 
Bellah, Mayor of Phoenix; Jan Fish, Mayor of Gold Hill.  Keith Heck, Commissioner Josephine County, 
was not present at the meeting. 
 
3.  Consent Calendar 
MOTION:  Councilor Roy Lindsay moved to approve the minutes of October 26th, 2016, Board Meeting 
as amended.  The motion was seconded by Director Carol Doty and approved unanimously. 
 
4.  Discussion/Presentation: 
Endowment Policies Document 
Mr. Cavallaro began by explaining that the new Endowment Policy Document has evolved significantly 
but he has tried to maintain some of what he believes to be the most important core pieces to the 
document and acknowledged that while not everyone is in an agreement with all of the policies it is his 
belief that it does adequately reflect the needs of the organization.  In particular some recent 



developments affecting the program’s future revenue prospects have increased that need, Mr. Cavallaro 
said, citing the continued steady decline in Food and Friends program income while service requests 
continue to rise.  He explained that the new administration may significantly impact the National Safety 
Net which will likely cause what he described as an “uptick” in demand, at the same time that the 
Medicaid expansion may be reversed.  He also cited Oregon’s own budget shortages which may 
significantly impact DHS programs that provide some level of funding to Food & Friends.  Specifically 
he referred to the Governor’s Budget’s proposed reduction of Oregon Project Independence, which is 
being recommended to be reduced from $21 million to $5 million.  This directly impacts subsidies 
required to continue to provide Food and Friends services that will still be required regardless of whether 
the funding is there or not. 
 
Mr. Cavallaro additionally reminded the Board that this Food & Friends program is proud of the fact that 
it fundraises more donations per meal than any other program in the state without a dedicated fundraiser, 
and is second only to Metro in terms of total fundraising. He also reminded them that they are one of the 
only programs in the state that has not had to resort to a wait list for new clients. He also stated that  
adding jurisdictional contributions to total fundraising brings the yearly total to between $260,000 and 
$300,000, a critical amount considering that federal funding is only 2/3 of the annual budget.   
 
Mr. Cavallaro agreed with Mr. Gordon and Mr. Mansfield that the normal reason to have an endowment 
is to provide for long term source of funding that will grow and provide operational funding.  The 
difficulty at this point, though, lies in the fact that the relatively small amount of the bequest (compared to 
the annual budget of $1.8 million), and the likely drop in governmental funding and the observed long-
term reduction in program income make dedicating all of the bequest to the “True Endowment” subfund 
problematic. He went on to describe this particular bequest that is being used to set up the endowment as 
something that took about ten years to develop, beginning with the donor being a volunteer and 
eventually requiring services through the Food and Friends program.  He predicted that, as long-term 
clients and volunteers age and pass away there will be more bequests made to Food & Friends.  While 
they most probably will not be as large, they will still make it possible to grow the endowment at the 
same time that they prevent significant retraction in providing services to those who need them.   
 
Referencing the draft policy document, he went on to make some comments on important pieces of the 
policy document, and to describe the latest edits.  He reiterated the rationale behind the three subfunds  
within the endowment, which he said would provide choices to those who wish to contribute and to make 
it easier for them to decide how their contributions are utilized.  In direct response to previous comments 
from Mr. Mansfield about the fact that it was difficult to understand the specific roles of staff, the 
Oversight Committee, and the members of the RVCOG Board, Mr. Cavallaro said he created a list of 
responsibilities for each, and exercise he said was very helpful.  He also reiterated a previous stance by 
explaining that it is his belief that if a position such as an Oversight Committee is created then it should 
be assigned some responsibility even if it is minimal. 
 
Board Member Harrison stated that it was important to have a program that is easy to understand but that 
still has safeguards and she believes that the Endowment Policy document achieves that also stating that 
she believes there is balance within the document. 
 
Board Member Mansfield stated that it was his experience that when it comes to non-profit organizations 
the smaller recommending committees like the Oversight Committee tend to make the larger Board 
perfunctory however Board Member Harrison stated that that is only if the Board chooses to act in that 
fashion.  Mr. Mansfield continued by saying that he expected the Board to vote on the policy and he 
expected it to pass as well and hoped that it would pass however with his experience previously stated 
coupled with his views regarding the principal of the endowment being used in some sections within 
policy were the specific reasons he would continue his objection.  Ms. Harrison added that she did agree 



with Mr. Mansfield regarding the relationship and decision making between smaller Boards to larger 
Boards but cautioned each current Board Member to remember that if they voted to approve this policy 
they are responsible for what happens.  Councilmember Lindsay stated that his experience has been the 
opposite of Mr. Mansfield but did state that he disagree’s with the “rubber stamp” style contributions to 
Boards and he would fight that himself if he ever witnessed it which he stated he had not.  Mr. Lindsay 
did agree that while there was certainly potential for something like that to develop he believes that the 
intelligence and wisdom of the current Board would not allow that to happen.  Director Doty added that 
the document was much improved and if necessary it can be revisited in the future.  Mr. Cavallaro also 
added that it was a much better document due to the Board’s observations over the last several meetings.  
 
MOTION:  Mayor Pam VanArsdale moved to approve the Food and Friends Endowment Policy 
Document.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Roy Lindsay.  President Lewis asked for comments 
and Mayor Bellah stated that whatever Board you serve on it is important to not be a “yes” or to just go 
along with the majority.  The motion was approved 10-3 in a roll call vote. 
 
Director Doty recommended revisiting the policy document in about a year to see if further amendments 
are required or if it was working the way the Board intended it to.  President Lewis agreed but did state 
that after only one year it might be difficult to make any further changes.  Ms. Harrison also agreed with 
Ms. Doty stating that it is just a good idea even if no changes are needed. 
 
Councilmember Gordon asked what the next step would be in the process. Mr. Cavallaro responded that 
now the Endowment Committee would need to make recommendations on how the current donation 
should be distributed between the endowment’s subfunds.  He explained that he would ask the Food & 
Friends program manager to make a recommendation of how the funds should be distributed and to make 
herself available to both the Executive Committee and the Board to discuss that recommendation. 
 
Appointment of New Members to the Senior Advisory Committee (SAC) 
Laura O’Bryon, RVCOG SDS Director explained that the three members being submitted for positions on 
the SAC had been voted on by the SAC Executive Committee and were unanimously approved by the 
SAC for recommendation to the Board. 
 
MOTION:  Councilmember Roy Lindsay moved to approve three new SAC members (Jacqueline Glynn, 
Richard Hoskins and Bernadette LaLonde).  The motion was seconded by Director Carol Doty.  The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  Reports 
Food & Friends Josephine County – Update 
Mr. Cavallaro handed out the Josephine County Food & Friends Building Funding Status sheet that 
breaks down the funding in terms of the 60% CDBG portion and the 40% Non-CDBG.  He explained that 
the sheet breaks down the ten different committed funding sources, also mentioning that the planned Cow 
Creek grant needed to be resubmitted because it had been submitted too early on the first attempt and that 
a response from the Chaney Family Foundation was anticipated in the near future.  A draft letter has been 
submitted to Josephine County that is requesting the IFA allow Pat Foley, RVCOG Community 
Development Specialist, to administer the grant.  He explained this was necessary because RVCOG was 
the recipient of the grant, and normally the recipient of the grant cannot also administer it.  In this case the 
exception is probable due to the excellent track record the COG has in administering these types of grants 
for its member jurisdictions, and due to the fact that Josephine County was the official recipient and was 
the party actually requesting that the COG administer the grant.  The next step is to immediately begin the 
Environmental Assessment which has been redesigned and is now including an additional federal agency 
review which will likely increase the time it takes to get the assessment done which also increases the 



importance of getting started early.  Until the Environmental Assessment is completed the funding cannot 
be received, although he stated that a draft of the RFP has already been created by Ms. Foley. 
 
President Lewis expressed his appreciation for the effort put forth by Mr. Cavallaro and the rest of the 
RVCOG Staff to get the project moved along this far.  Mr. Cavallaro responded by stating that it was the 
Boards trust in RVCOG in allowing them to utilize funding as a place holder for the future funds expected 
to be received that allowed the project to come this far as well.  Ann Marie Alfrey, RVCOG Human 
Resources Manager added that it might be August 2017 before any actual work begins on the building, 
citing the need to wrap up the Environmental Assessment and complete the actual purchase of the 
building. She also added that there were a couple of 30 day notification periods that were also necessary 
during this first six months of the project, which will add to the length of time before the actual 
construction can begin. 
 
Solar Installation-Update 
Mr. Cavallaro reported that the tax investor who was originally willing to be a partner on the project has 
now withdrawn his interest for now due to a lack of information about how the new administration in 
Washington D.C. will impact the tax code. 
 
Newly Elected Officials Orientation-Update 
Mr. Cavallaro reported that so far nine newly elected officials had RSVP’d for the event and asked 
Donovan Edwards, RVCOG Office Specialist to brief the Board on the members who had RSVP’d.  
 
Receivables Report / Balance Sheet / Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 
Mr. Cavallaro did not have additional comments.  
 
6.  Regional Update / Open Air 
Jackson County – The Sheriff position is potentially to be opened in December; if it opens the Board is 
prepared to move on with the applications it has received.  Commissioner Roberts has a meeting 
scheduled with Sheriff Falls in hopes of changing his mind. 
 
Ashland – An interim City Administrator and interim Finance Director should make for an interesting 
budget season.  The city is also working on a replacement for Pam Marsh, who is moving on to the state 
office.  The city is wrestling with the procedure to replace her, it seems the process changes each time this 
becomes necessary.  In response to President Lewis’ question as to whether the succession procedures are 
included in the City Charter Mr. Morris responded that it was not.  He said that his experience is that the 
person being nominated is not the usual issue but rather it is typically the procedure for making that 
decision that creates the largest concern. 
 
Eagle Point – For the first time in over 100 years 12 new hotel rooms are under construction in the city 
(at the Eagle Point Golf Course). Phase 2, set to begin at the end of 2017, will include another 24 new 
rooms.  In addition, the 1.6 million gallon water reservoir is expected to be finished within the next 
couple months. 
 
Rogue River – New Police Officer was sworn in.  No council changes. 
 
ODOT –Reminded the Board of the historic significance of the date of 7 December.  He also cited the 
importance of public service and thanked those who would be moving on from public service and 
additionally thanked those who will continue or are new to their respective offices,  stating that it is not 
just the local community they represent but the region, the state, and the nation.   
 



Gold Hill – Mayor Fish admitted some regret as her term as Mayor finishes, citing the many issues the 
city has faced during her tenure some of which she would like to see to conclusion so she promised to still 
be involved in some way she was just unsure of how that would play out.  She cited the social media 
impact that Gold Hill has faced and said that she would encourage the Mayor and Council to take 
advantage of a new course through CIS that will help train them to best handle social media concerns.  
Mayor Fish also thanked the Board saying it was a great Board to be a part of and she appreciates her 
experience in being a member.  For good news, no water breaks have been reported in over two weeks. 

Central Point – Mr. Samuelson stated that he enjoyed serving on the Board and explained that what he 
learned most from his time as a Councilmember was that the majority of issues this country faces is due 
to a lack of accountability after being elected.   
 
Phoenix – Mayor Bellah reported that he has spent at least the last six months preparing to turn over the 
City of Phoenix to a largely new council and expressed the importance of passing on the need for them to 
remember their fiscal responsibility and the importance of being good stewards of the city finances.  He 
stated that when he was elected the Mayor of Phoenix the city was operating off of a loan, and now has 
over $1.5 million for street and water projects.  
 
JCLD – As of 1 January 2017 JCLD will have a full time employee via RVCOG.  JCLD recently 
requested the entire system be assessed based on the Oregon Library Association standards.  The District 
has a ways to go to comply with those standards, which also include state laws.  Recent negotiations with 
the main library contractor have given hope that issues revolving around hiring and how the Library 
Director will be resolved for both the contractor and the District.  Ms. Doty described the process from 
the creation of the District on to the present as very complex, and that she believed that the District has 
been very responsible with public funding.  With the new relationship developing between the contractor 
and the District the hope is that the Library Director is allowed to take on more of the administrator role 
to allow the Directors to step away from that aspect and provide more time to devote to the various 
Boards the Directors are now on along with more District oversight rather than the hands on approach that 
has been required up until now. 
 
Grants Pass – Four new Councilmembers.  A public meeting was held by the Council that was also 
supposed to include the new Councilmembers, only two showed up for that meeting but it was described 
as a very successful meeting in which they talked about processes.  A language mishap may have caused 
the marijuana ballots to fail; because of that Grants Pass now has dispensaries and can site marijuana 
processors.  Two new restaurants are coming in, Red Robin is about halfway done and the plans for In-
and-Out Burgers are in the final stages.  The Council is currently struggling with water and waste 
treatmen issuest; just approved a contract with CH2M, utilizing the new design/build paradigm that 
means a full RFP is not required. When Grants Pass is ready to build then CH2M can bid on the job along 
with other contractors.  The water treatment plan is moving forward but it was determined that anything 
less than a full rebuild is not possible, and that a new plant will cost approximately $56 million. 
 
Mr. Cavallaro asked whether the original façade of the water treatment plant could be saved; 
Councilmember Lindsay responded that since the water treatment plant will need to be replaced entirely 
but not until after the new water treatment plant is operational it is now the hope that the façade can be 
repurposed, for what is not known at this time.  There are many opportunities coming up for it to be used 
and it was built in the 1930’s and even with damage sustained over time it is still considered exceptional 
art deco. 
 
As a cautionary tale Mr. Lindsay stated that what Grants Pass is facing currently with the water 
treatment/waste treatment is a case of previous councils “kicking the can down the road” instead of doing 



what needed to be done when it was needed and consequently they are now facing a myriad of issues.  
Master Plans have now been updated, some of them were over 20 years old.  The three Master Plans he 
referred to was waste collection, water distribution and stormwater and amounted to over $300 million;  
he also mentioned was the water treatment plant was expected to cost approximately $56 million and the 
waste treatment plant will cost approximately $22 million overall.   
 
RVTD – As a result of the May elections two new routes are being introduced in early January; one route 
is to RCC and the other route is in South Medford.  
  
Medford – The city has three new Councilmembers.  In a 2-1 vote residential marijuana outdoor grows 
have been prohibited.  In the last legislative session Dr. Bates convinced the legislature and Governor to 
approve $100,000 locally to hire a consultant who would be able to assess whether the community of 
Medford could support a convention center.  The funds were strictly state funds and no local funding was 
used for this.  The local chambers were very involved in the process and the business community 
developed a proposal.  While it was determined that a convention center would not be a good fit however, 
it was suggested that instead they build off of a successful project like US Cellular Park.  Although it is 
currently an exclusively outdoor park, if they were to build a larg building that could house basketball and 
volleyball courts or indoor soccer fields, it could also have the necessary square footage to host events if 
needed.  Much more discussion is required on this, although it is believed that a convention center being 
developed in the Medford area will not be discussed moving forward. 
 
RVS – In the midst of labor contracts.  Two vacancies on the RVS Budget Committee. 
 
Jacksonville – After elections there is only one new Councilmember.  Both anti-marijuana ballots passed 
but the Charter ballot failed.  They intend to resubmit the Charter ballot after more education and training 
is conducted on it.  President Lewis expressed his gratitude to the RVCOG Board Members who are 
vacating their positions on the Board and additionally thanked all Board Members for their contributions 
over the last year and he is looking forward to a successful 2017. 
 
Agenda Build 
Contact staff to suggest items for future agendas. 
 
Next Meeting 
The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, January 25th, 2017, in RVCOG’s conference room. 
 
Adjournment:  President Lewis adjourned the meeting at 1:25 p.m. 
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Board of Directors 

 
Executive Committee 

President - Jim Lewis .........................................................................................City of Jacksonville 
1st Vice-President – Jody Hathaway .... Emergency Communications of Southern Oregon (ECSO) 
2nd Vice-President – E.J. McManus ............................................................................ City of Talent 
Kay Harrison .......................................................................... Rogue Valley Sewer Services (RVS) 
Dick Gordon............................................................................................................ City of Medford 
Pam VanArsdale ............................................................................................... City of Rogue River 

 
Board Members 

 
Colleen Roberts ........................................................................................................ Jackson County 
Keith Heck ............................................................................................................ Josephine County 
Mike Morris ............................................................................................................. City of Ashland 
Vacant ............................................................................................................... Town of Butte Falls 
Carl Jacobson, Jr. ............................................................................................City of Cave Junction 
Rick Samuelson ............................................................................................... City of Central Point 
Bob Russell ......................................................................................................... City of Eagle Point 
Jan Fish .................................................................................................................. City of Gold Hill 
Roy Lindsay ........................................................................................................City of Grants Pass 
Colleen Padilla ...................... Southern Oregon Regional Economic Development, Inc. (SOREDI) 
Jeff Bellah ................................................................................................................ City of Phoenix 
Tom Anderson ................................................................................................... City of Shady Cove 
Susan Kiefer ...................................................................... Jackson County Library District (JCLD) 
Randy White .............................................. Jackson Soil & Water Conservation District (JSWCD) 
Mary O’Kief............................................................................... Rogue Community College (RCC) 
Bill Mansfield ......................................................... Rogue Valley Transportation District (RVTD) 
Liz Shelby .................................................................................Southern Oregon University (SOU) 

All Board members receive mail at the Administrative Office. 
  

Management Staff 
 

Michael Cavallaro ............................................................................................... Executive Director 
Roberta Varble .................................................................... Senior and Disability Services Director 
Dan Moore ........................................... Planning and Community Development Program Manager 
Greg Stabach ..................................................................... Natural Resources Program Coordinator 
Ann Marie Alfrey ............................. Human Resources Manager / Assistant to Executive Director 
Cindy Shindell ....................................................................................................... Finance Manager 
 

Administrative Office 
155 North 1st Street, P.O. Box 3275, Central Point, Oregon 97502 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
As management of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments, we offer readers of RVCOG’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Rogue 
Valley Council of Governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  We encourage readers 
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we 
have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 2 through 6 of this 
report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
  

The assets of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments exceeded its liabilities at the close 
of the most recent fiscal year by $995,720 (Net Position).  Of this amount, $415,947 
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet RVCOG’s ongoing obligations to citizens 
and creditors. 

 
RVCOG’s total net position increased by $238,693.  This increase is related to total 
revenues in excess of expenditures in the governmental funds. 

 
As of the close of the current fiscal year, RVCOG’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $166,282, a net increase of $133,977 from the prior year.  

 
At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was 
$552,388 or 100.04% percent of total general fund expenditures. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to RVCOG’s basic financial 
statements.  RVCOG’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of RVCOG’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of RVCOG’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of any shifts or trends in RVCOG’s financial 
performance. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as 
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Rogue Valley 
Council of Governments that are principally supported by intergovernmental revenues 
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  As discussed 
previously, RVCOG’s governmental activities include general government, health and welfare, 
natural resources and conservation, and planning. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26 and 27 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  RVCOG, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of RVCOG’s funds can be divided into 
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, and changes in fund equity provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
RVCOG maintains two individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, and 
changes in fund equity for the general and the special revenue fund, both of which are considered 
to be major funds. 
 
RVCOG adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its funds.  A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for each of the governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with 
this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 32 of this 
report. 
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Proprietary funds. RVCOG maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Internal service funds are 
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the organization’s 
various functions.  RVCOG uses internal service funds to account for its building operations, 
leave liability, vehicles, information systems, and other management functions that cannot be 
allocated to other functions.  Because all of these services predominantly benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. 
 
All of the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the 
proprietary fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for the internal service funds is 
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 through 35 of this 
report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 36 through 49 of this report. 
 
Other information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with internal 
service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.  
Combining statements and schedules can be found on pages 56 through 58 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of RVCOG, assets exceed liabilities by $995,720 at the close of 
the most recent fiscal year.  The majority of RVCOG’s net position reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  RVCOG uses these assets to provide services to 
member jurisdictions; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although 
RVCOG’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, RVCOG is able to report a positive balance in net position 
for the government as a whole.  Separately, the internal service funds report positive balances in 
both the investment in capital assets and unrestricted categories of net position, while the 
governmental funds report a positive balance in the capital assets category. 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ Net Position 

 
Governmental activities 

 
     2016     2015 Change 

Current and other assets $    2,208,017  $    1,922,909   $       285,108  
Capital assets     741,904      769,665             (27,761) 
          Total assets $ 2,949,921  $ 2,692,574  $       257,347  

    Long-term liabilities outstanding $    828,830  $    699,545   $       129,285  
Other liabilities     1,125,371    1,236,002           (110,631) 
        Total liabilities $    1,954,201  $ 1,935,547   $         18,654  

    Net Position: 
        Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $    579,773  $    620,172  $       (40,399) 

Unrestricted     415,947      136,855            279,092  
          Total Net Position $    995,720  $    757,027   $       238,693  

     
RVCOG’s Net Position increased by $238,693 during the current fiscal year.  RVCOG’s net 
position in the governmental funds and internal service funds are consolidated in the 
government-wide statement of net position; the $238,693 is the result of this consolidation. 
 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities accounted for the entire increase in RVCOG’s 
net position since all activities are governmental.  Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

1. The general fund’s fund balance increased by $107,997 as a result of revenues 
exceeding expenses.  The general fund is funded by two primary sources, member dues 
and indirect charges, which are charged to the programs in the special revenue fund. 
There are a small number of programs which are able to collect revenues from local 
sources in excess of the amounts expended on those projects.  Member dues were exactly 
as anticipated.  The indirect charges are based on an annual rate that is determined during 
the budget process using the general fund budgeted expenditures, less member dues and 
other miscellaneous revenues, divided by the applicable special revenue fund 
expenditures.  When the actual expenses of the special revenue fund falls below the level 
that was anticipated the result to the general fund is a decrease in indirect revenues.  This 
was not the case during the current fiscal year.   

 
2. The net position of the special revenue fund increased by $25,980 as a result of total 
net revenues in the various programs, when taken as a whole being higher than the total 
overall expenditures.  The majority of both grants and contracts only reimburse actual 
expenditures up to a total amount; however, a small number of programs are able to 
collect revenues from local sources in excess of the amounts expended on those projects, 
thus while in some projects expenditures may exceed the available resources, other 
projects can generate extra revenue which can be used as an offset.  This year the projects 
that had available resources in excess of expenditures exceeded those with excess 
expenditures. 
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3. The net position of the internal service funds increased by $104,716.  As with the 
indirect charges, the charges for the internal service funds are based on an annual rate that 
is determined during the budget process using the general and special revenue funds 
budgeted expenditures.  When the actual expenses of these funds exceed the level that 
was anticipated the result to the internal service funds is a decrease in revenues.  Any 
significant increase in the net position of the internal service funds are used in the 
following year to reduce the rates charged to the general and special revenue funds.  
 
During this fiscal year compensated absences expense was $519,037.    
 
 
     
                                                                                                     

 
 
  

2016 2015 Change 
Revenues: 
Program revenues: 
     Charges for services 54,656 $            14,070 $            40,586 $            
     Operating grants and contributions 6,584,127          6,261,322          322,805             
General revenues: 
     Other revenues 125,442             73,333               52,109               
          Total revenues 6,764,225 $       6,348,725 $       415,500 $          

Expenses: 
     General government 1,736,803 $       1,676,819 $       59,984 $            
     Health and welfare 3,859,776          4,011,264          (151,488)           
     Natural resources and conservation 155,598             203,216             (47,618)             
     Planning 767,427             506,226             261,201             
     Interest on long-term debt 5,928                 7,218                 (1,290)               
          Total expenses 6,525,532 $       6,404,743 $       120,789 $          

Increase (decrease) in net assets 238,693 $          (56,018) $          294,711 $          
Net assets 7/1 757,027             813,045             (56,018)             
Net assets 6/30 995,720 $          757,027 $          238,693 $          

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Changes in Net Assets 
Governmental activities 
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
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Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities         

 
 
 
Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds 
 
As noted earlier, RVCOG uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of RVCOG’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in 
assessing RVCOG’s financing requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
           
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ 
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $166,282 an increase of 
$133,977 in comparison with the prior year.  Of this amount $552,388 constitutes unreserved 
fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion.  All of the 
remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending 
because it has already been committed to liquidate contracts of the prior period. 
 
The general fund is the administrative operating fund of the Rogue Valley Council of 
Governments.  At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund 
was $552,388.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.   
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RVCOG’s general fund equity increased by $107,997 during the current fiscal year.  Key factors 
in this increase are as follows: 
 

1. General Fund revenue exceeded what had been anticipated by $196,576. Indirect 
charges are the major source of revenue for the general fund, with the rate being based on 
the budgeted expenditures of the special revenue fund projects. A shortfall in this revenue 
source would be due to the expenditures of the special revenue fund falling short of the 
amounts budgeted. 
 
2. The actual expenditures for the fiscal year were above the level budgeted by $88,579.  
These additional expenditures were related to and offset by the additional revenue in the 
Special Revenue funds.  The major revenue for the general fund is indirect charges, 
which are based on the budgeted expenditures of the general fund. It had been anticipated 
that the total expenditures would not exceed revenues for the current year, and that 
resources collected in prior years would not be needed.   
 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  RVCOG’s investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of 
June 30, 2016, amounts to $741,904 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery, and equipment.   
 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

 
Governmental activities 

 
2016 2015 Change 

Land  $       100,000   $       100,000   $                     -  
Buildings           419,385            436,436            (17,051) 
Machinery and equipment           222,519            233,229             (10,710) 
          Total  $       741,904   $       769,665   $        (27,761) 

 
 
The total change in RVCOG’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 
$27,761. Accumulated depreciation in buildings and machinery and equipment increased 
$35,481. 
 
Additional information on RVCOG’s capital assets can be found in note 4.C on page 45 of this 
report. 
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Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, RVCOG had no bonded debt outstanding. 
 

 
 
Additional information on RVCOG’s long-term debt can be found in note 4.F on page 47 of this 
report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets 
 
RVCOG is less affected by the economy locally than it is statewide, due to the fact that a 
majority of the projects undertaken by RVCOG are funded through state grants and contracts. 
Nonetheless, RVCOG does depend to a significant degree on the ability of its members to pay 
dues, which a poor local economy could impact.  While dues are commonly between 1.5% and 
2% of RVCOG’s overall budget ($96,175 in the current year), they are critically important in 
providing a small amount of contingency and in funding activities that are not recoverable 
through indirect cost allocation or reimbursement (per OMB Uniform Guidance).  
 
Currently, as it has for the last several years, the State of Oregon is facing major revenue 
shortfalls due to a significant economic downturn affecting the entire state.  As discussed, this is 
a situation that does tend to have a direct impact on RVCOG’s budget, and therefore this was a 
significant consideration during the preparation of RVCOG’s budget for the 2016-2017 fiscal 
year. 
 
During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased to 
$552,388.  RVCOG has appropriated $100,000 of this amount for spending in the 2016-2017 
fiscal year budget.  The federally approved indirect rate, which provides 77.7% of the general 
fund resources, is set at 14.0% of applicable direct cost of all projects in the special revenue fund 
and has remained the same as the prior year. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Rogue Valley Council of 
Governments’ finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Finance Manager, Rogue Valley Council of 
Governments, P.O. Box 3275, Central Point, OR 97502. 

2016 2015 Change 
Lease purchase agreement 118,742 $          149,493 $          (30,751) $          
          Total 118,742 $          149,493 $          (30,751) $          

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Outstanding Debt 
Lease Purchase Agreement 

Governmental activities 
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Primary Government  
Governmental Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,513,013 $                           
Receivables 670,711                                 
Prepaids 24,293                                   
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 
     Land 100,000                                 
     Buildings 419,385                                 
     Machinery and equipment 222,519                                 
          Total assets 2,949,921 $                           

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,125,371 $                           
Noncurrent liabilities: 
     Due within one year 376,850                                 
     Due in more than one year 451,980                                 
          Total liabilities 1,954,201 $                           

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) 579,773 $                              
Unrestricted 415,947                                 
         Total net assets 995,720 $                              

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2016 
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Net (Expense)  
Revenue and  
Changes in  
Net Assets 

Expenses 
Charges for  

Services 

Operating  
Grants and  

Contributions 

Primary  
Government  

Governmental  
Activities 

General government 1,736,803 $     48,851 $        681,661 $        (1,006,291) $     
Health and welfare 3,859,776        5,805             4,656,860        802,889             
Natural resources and  
conservation 155,598           217,382           61,784               
Planning 767,427           1,028,224        260,797             
Interest on long-term debt 5,928               (5,928)               
Total governmental activities 6,525,532 $     54,656 $        6,584,127 $     113,251 $          

6,525,532 $     54,656 $        6,584,127 $     113,251 $          

General revenues: 
     Interest earned -                        
     Private grants and contracts -                        
     Sale of assets -                        
     Other revenues 125,442             
     Total general revenues 125,442 $          
      Change in net assets 238,693 $         
Net assets - beginning 757,027             
Net assets - ending 995,720 $          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Program Revenues 

Functions/Programs 
Primary Government: 
     Governmental Activities: 

Total primary government 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2016 

     

  
General Special Revenue 

Total Governmental 
Funds 

ASSETS 
    Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 $                    885,311  $                    (89,408)  $                    795,903 
Receivables 

 
                         16,451                         593,895                         610,346  

Prepaid 
 

                         10,152                          14,151                          24,303 
          Total assets 

 
 $                    911,914  $                    518,638  $                 1,430,552 

     LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
    Liabilities: 
         Accounts payable 
 

 $                      52,011   $                     165,265   $                    217,276 
     Payroll payable 

 
                       305,704                                     -                         305,704 

     Due to others 
 

                           1,811                         487,404                        489,215  
     Deferred revenue 

 
                   -                         252,075                         252,075  

       Total liabilities 
 

 $                    359,526  $                     904,744  $                 1,264,270 
     Fund Balances: 

         Unassigned 
 

 $                    552,388 $                    (386,106)  $                     166,282   
     Total fund balance 

 
 $                    552,388  $                    (386,106)  $                     166,282 

               Total liabilities and fund balances 
 

 $                    911,914   $                     518,638 
      

 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because: 

 

  

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds. 

                       43,177 
 

  
Internal service funds are used by management to 
charge the costs of internal services, computer 
rent, leave liability and building operating costs 
to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of 
the internal service funds are included in 
governmental activities in the statement of net 
position. 

 

  
                       786,261 

 
Net Position of governmental activities  $                    995,720 

      
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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General 
Special  

Revenue 

Total  
Governmental  

Funds 
REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 173,177 $          5,134,549 $       5,307,726 $       
Charges for services 397,175             187,458             584,633             
Contributions and donations 144,000             765,366             909,366             
Other revenues 4,974                 120,468             125,442             
          Total revenues 719,326 $          6,207,841 $       6,927,167 $       

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
     General government 533,226 $          533,226 $          
     Health and welfare 4,921,073 $       4,921,073          
     Natural resources and conservation 245,070             245,070             
     Planning 1,019,321          1,019,321          
          Total expenditures 533,226 $          6,185,464 $       6,718,690 $       
Excess of revenues over expenditures 

186,100 $          22,377 $            208,477 $          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 20,000 $            3,603 $              23,603 $            
Transfers out (98,103)           -                        (98,103)             
          Total other financing sources (uses) (78,103) $          3,603 $              (74,500) $          

          Net change in fund balance 107,997 $          25,980 $            133,977 $          
Fund balance – beginning as restated 444,391             (412,086)            32,305                 
Fund balance - ending 552,388 $          (386,106) $        166,282 $          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (see page 27)  
are different because: 

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (see page 29) 133,977 $                      

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of internal services,  
computer rent, leave liability, vehicle operating and building operating costs to individual  
funds.  The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with  
governmental activities. 
          Internal service fund 30,951 $                        
          Computer rental fund 22,130                           
          Leave liability fund (63,226)                         
          Vehicle operating & maintenance fund 11,721                           
          Building operating & maintenance fund 103,140                         
                    Net revenues 104,716 $                      

Change in net assets of governmental activities (see page 27) 238,693 
 

$                      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance  

of Governmental Funds 
To the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Original Final
Actual 

Amounts
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 160,495$         160,495$         173,177$         12,682$           
Charges for services 421,965           421,965           397,175           (24,790)            
Contributions and donations -                       -                       144,000           144,000           
Other revenues -                       -                       4,974               4,974               
          Total revenues 582,460$         582,460$         719,326$         136,866$         

EXPENDITURES
Current:
     General government 542,460$         542,460$         533,226$         9,234$             
          Total expenditures 542,460$         542,460$         533,226$         9,234$             

Excess of revenues over expenditures 40,000$           40,000$           186,100$         146,100$         

Transfers in 23,110$           23,110$           20,000$           (3,110)$            
Transfers out (63,110)$          (63,110)$          (98,103)$          (34,993)$          
          Total other financing sources (uses) (40,000)$          (40,000)$          (78,103)$          (38,103)$          

          Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     107,997$         107,997$         
Fund balance - beginning 40,000             40,000             444,391           404,391           
Fund balance - ending 40,000$           40,000$           552,388$         512,388$         

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

General Fund

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
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Original Final Actual Amounts
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5,937,394$      6,045,250$      5,134,549$        (910,701)$          
Charges for services 179,622           186,472           187,458             986                    
Contributions and donations 802,000           802,000           765,366             (36,634)              
Other revenues 181,239           238,638           120,468             (118,170)            
          Total revenues 7,100,255$      7,272,360$      6,207,841$        (1,064,519)$       

EXPENDITURES
Current:
     Health and welfare 5,546,466$      5,868,319$      4,921,073$        947,246$           
     Natural resources and conservation 403,975           254,227           245,070             9,157                 
     Planning 1,154,814        1,154,814        1,019,321          135,493             
          Total expenditures 7,105,255$      7,277,360$      6,185,464$        1,091,896$        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (5,000)$            (5,000)$            22,377$             27,377$             

Transfers in 5,000$             5,000$             3,603$               (1,397)$              

          Total other financing sources (uses) 5,000$             5,000$             3,603$               (1,397)$              

          Net change in fund balance -$                     -$                     25,980$             25,980$             
Fund balance - beginning -                       -                       (412,086)            (412,086)            
Fund balance - ending -$                     -$                     (386,106)$          (386,106)$          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)
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Governmental  
Activities - Internal  

Service Funds 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 
      Cash and cash equivalents 717,110 $                     
      Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 60,365                        
      Prepaid -                                    
      Due from other funds -                                    
          Total current assets 777,475 $                     

Long-term assets: 
     Capital assets 
          Land 100,000 $                     
          Buildings 741,689                        
          Machinery and equipment 238,587                        
          Less accumulated depreciation (381,549)                       
          Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 698,727 $                     
          Total long-term assets 698,727 $                     

          Total assets 1,476,202 $                  

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
     Accounts payable and other current liabilities 114,831 $                     
     Compensated absences-current portion 91,231                          
     Lease/purchase agreement payable-current portion 31,899                          
          Total current liabilities 237,961 $                     

Long-term liabilities 
     Compensated absences-non-current portion 364,924 $                     
     Lease/purchase agreement payable-non-current portion 87,056                          
          Total long-term liabilities 451,980 $                     

          Total liabilities 689,941 $                     

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) 576,995 $                     
Unrestricted 209,266                        
         Total net assets 786,261 $                     

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2016 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Proprietary Funds 
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Governmental  
Activities -  

Internal Service  
Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 
      Charges for services 1,174,917 $            
      Leave liability accrual charges 455,811                  
      Other revenues -                              
          Total operating revenues 1,630,728 $            

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Costs of services 1,045,994 $            
Leave liability costs 519,037                  
Depreciation 35,481                    
          Total operating expenses 1,600,512 $            

          Operating income 30,216 $                 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest expense - $                           
          Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 30,216 $                 

Transfers In 74,500 $                 
Change in net assets 104,716 $               

Total net assets - beginning 681,545 $               

Total net assets - ending 786,261 $               

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Governmental 
Activities - 

Internal Service 
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from interfund services provided 1,123,745$          
Receipts from outside services provided 455,915               
Payments to suppliers (942,639)              
Payments to employees (466,496)              
          Net cash provided by operating activities 170,525$             

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITES
Interfund loans (short-term) -$                         
Transfers from other funds 74,500                 
          Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 74,500$               

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
ACTIVITES
Purchase of capital assets for general purposes (7,720)$                
Principle paid on capital debt (30,538)$              
Interest paid on capital debt -                           
          Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (38,258)$              

          Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 206,767$             
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1 510,343               

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30 717,110$             

Operating income 30,216$               
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating 
activities:
      Depreciation 35,482$               
      Increase in accounts receivable (51,834)                
      Decrease in prepaids 765                      
      Increase in uncompensated absences 52,541                 
      Increase in accounts payable 103,355               
          Total adjustments 140,309$             

Net cash provided by operating activities 170,525$             

Contributions of capital assets from government (net of related debt) -$                         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 
 
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 A. Reporting Entity 
 

The Rogue Valley Council of Governments (RVCOG) is an independent local 
governmental entity formed under the authority of Oregon Revised Statutes 
(ORS) Chapter 190 on September 30, 1968.  Although RVCOG’s governing 
board includes elected officials representing several of the local governmental 
units, counties, cities and special districts, located in Jackson and Josephine 
Counties, none of these other governing bodies exert direct oversight over 
RVCOG.  In addition, RVCOG does not exert oversight authority over any other 
local governmental entity.  The decisions of the RVCOG Board are not binding 
on any member entity.  RVCOG is not a component unit of any other local 
governmental entity, nor is any other governmental entity a component unit of 
RVCOG. 

 
 B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and 
the statement of changes in net position) report information on all of RVCOG’s 
activities.  The effect of interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in 
the process of consolidating the funds for these statements.   

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary 
funds.  Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
  
 C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement 

presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as 
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  
For this purpose, the RVCOG considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures 
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

 
Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All 
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash 
is received by RVCOG. 

 
The RVCOG reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The general fund is the RVCOG’s primary operating fund.  It 
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
The special revenue fund accounts for all financial resources 
associated with the functional programs carried out by the RVCOG 
with the exception of the administrative function which is 
accounted for in the general fund. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement 
presentation (continued) 
 
Additionally, the RVCOG reports the following fund types: 

 
  Internal service funds account for administrative services not 

included in the general fund, information systems operation, 
computer acquisition and replacement, building operations, vehicle 
operations and leave liability services provided to other RVCOG 
departments, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement 
basis. 

 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. 

 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and 
contracts, and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.  Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues 
of the government’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services.  Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
RVCOG’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 
they are needed. 

 
 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity 
 

1. Deposits and investments 
 

The RVCOG’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, 
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition. 

 
RVCOG has no investments. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued) 
 
2. Receivables and payables 

 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other 
funds.” 

 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset 
by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate 
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available 
financial resources. 

 
All trade receivables are shown at actual amount with no allowance for un-
collectables included because all receivables are expected to be collected 
eventually. 

 
3. Prepaid items 

 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

 
4. Capital assets 

 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, and equipment, are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the government-
wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by RVCOG as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an 
estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued) 
 

Buildings and equipment of the RVCOG are depreciated using the straight line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Assets   Years 
Buildings 35 
Vehicles 5 
Office Equipment 5 
Computer Equipment 5 

 
 
5. Compensated absences 

 
It is RVCOG’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused 
vacation and sick pay benefits up to maximum limits. Upon separation, 
employees are entitled to all accrued but unused vacation benefits and 20% of 
unused sick leave benefits if separating in “good standing”. A Catastrophic Leave 
Bank was established to provide additional sick leave benefits to eligible 
employees who exhaust all other paid leave due to a qualifying illness or injury. 
The Leave Bank is funded through donations of excess sick and /or vacation leave 
from current employees as well as the 80% balance of sick leave remaining from 
separating employees. 

 
6. Long-term obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements and governmental and proprietary 
fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 

 
7. Fund equity 

 
In the fund financial statements, Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions (GASB 54) defines the different types of fund balances that a 
governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes. GASB 54 requires 
the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the five fund 
balance components listed below: 
 

Non-spendable – This component includes amounts that cannot be spent 
because they are either (1) not in spendable form or (2) legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued) 
 

Restricted – This component consists of amounts that can be spent only 
for specific purposes stipulated by external resource providers, 
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.  RVCOG has no 
restricted fund balance. 

 
Committed – This component consists of amounts that can only be spent 
for specific purposes determined by a formal action of RVCOG’s highest 
level of decision-making authority, which includes resolutions.  Those 
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless RVCOG 
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
(resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts.  RVCOG 
has no committed fund balance. 

 
Assigned – This component consists of amounts that are intended to be 
used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria 
to be classified as restricted or committed.  The authority for assigning 
fund balance is expressed by the Board of Directors, or its designee as 
established in RVCOG’s Fund Balance Policy.  RVCOG has no assigned 
fund balance. 

 
Unassigned – This residual classification of fund balance includes all 
spendable amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is 
RVCOG’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources 
(committed, assigned and unassigned) as they are needed.  When unrestricted 
resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it is 
RVCOG’s policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then 
unassigned, as they are needed. 
 

Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements 
 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the government-wide statement of net position 

 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund 
balance-total governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as 
reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  One element of that 
reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not 
due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”   
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Note 3 - Stewardship, compliance, and accountability 
 

A. Budgetary information 
 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles for all governmental funds.  All annual appropriations lapse 
at fiscal year end. 

 
In the spring of each year the Executive Director submits a proposed budget to the budget 
committee.  This committee comprises three members of the Board of Directors and an 
equal number of concerned citizens who are appointed by the Board.  The budget 
committee reviews the budget as submitted, and holds a public hearing for the purpose of 
discussing the budget with the various department managers and to receive citizen 
comments.  The budget committee approves the budget after making any changes that the 
members deem necessary, and recommends it to the Board of Directors.  The Board can 
then make adjustments to the recommended budget, but are limited to no more than a 10 
percent increase in each fund.  The Board of Directors adopts the budget and sets 
appropriations by resolution prior to July 1.   

 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund with the exception of the Special 
Revenue Fund, which is prepared by department.  Only the Special Revenue Fund 
is divided into programmatic departments, the General Fund includes only the 
organization’s central administrative functions.  Department heads may make 
transfers of appropriations within a department’s programs; all other changes to 
the appropriations must be approved by the Board.  The legal level of budgetary 
control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations) is the fund level for all funds except the Special Revenue Fund, 
which is at the department level.  The Board made supplemental budgetary 
appropriations during the year in the Special Revenue Fund. 

 
 B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in 
either the General or Special Revenue funds. 

 
 C. Deficit fund equity 
 

The Special Revenue fund had a deficit fund balance, most of it historical (from 
the latter half of the 1990s) of $386,106 as of June 30, 2016. The revenues for a 
number of the projects within the fund exceeded expenditures by a net of $25,980 
during the year then ended.  This amount decreased the deficit beginning fund 
balance of $412,086.  
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds 
 

A. Deposits and investments 
 

RVCOG maintains cash and investments with Peoples Bank of Commerce, Banner Bank 
(formerly American West Bank) and Evergreen Federal Savings. 

                                 
At year end, RVCOG’s carrying amount of deposits in Peoples Bank of 
Commerce was $1,493,385 and Banner Bank was $14,777. The carrying amount 
of deposits in Evergreen Federal Savings was $4,251.   Of the bank balances, 
$250,000 is covered by federal depository insurance.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 40, Deposits and Investment 
Risk Disclosures, requires government agencies to disclose an indication of the 
level of risk assumed by the entity at year-end.  If bank deposits at year-end are 
not entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by RVCOG or by its 
agent in RVCOG’s name, the custodial credit risk that exists must be disclosed.  
Deposits with financial institutions are held in RVCOG’s name and comprise 
bank demand deposits.  During 2007, the legislature revised ORS 295 which 
governs the collateralization of Oregon public funds.  This revision created a 
shared liability structure for bank depositories and streamlined the 
collateralization process for local governments.  The Office of the State Treasurer 
monitors the banks collateral and issues a list of qualified bank depositories to 
public officials to verify the banks they do business with comply with State 
collateralization requirements.  RVCOG’s financial institutions are on the 
approved list. 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the 
government’s deposits may not be returned to it.  RVCOG does not have a formal 
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 
 
The custodian, Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, is the agent of the depository 
bank.  The securities pledged are designated as subject to the Pledge Agreement 
between the Depository Bank, Custodian Bank and Office of the State Treasurer 
(OST) and are held for the benefit of the OST on behalf of the public depositors. 

 
As of June 30, 2016 and for the year then ended, RVCOG was in compliance with the 
aforementioned State of Oregon statutes. 
 
Credit Risk – State Statutes authorize RVCOG to invest primarily in general obligations 
of the U.S. Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon 
municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, time certificates of 
deposit, certain commercial paper, and the Oregon State Treasury LGIP, among others.  
RVCOG has no formal investment policy that further restricts its investment choices. 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued) 
 

A. Deposits and investment (continued) 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – RVCOG is required to provide information about the 
concentration of credit risk associated with its investments in one issuer that represents 5 
percent or more of the total investments, excluding investments in external investment 
pools or those issued and explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government.  RVCOG has no 
such investments. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – RVCOG has no formal investment policy that explicitly limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from 
increasing interest rates. 

 
RVCOG had no investments as of June 30, 2016. 

 
 B. Receivables 
 

Receivables as of year-end for RVCOG’s individual major funds and internal 
service funds in the aggregate are as follows: 

  
 

RVCOG’s accounts receivable are pledged as collateral for the line of credit. See note 4.G on 
page 48. 
 
Governmental funds reported $252,075 as deferred revenue in connection with 
receivables for revenues that are considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the 
current period.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Receivables: General 
Special  

Revenue Other Funds Total 
Accounts 234 $                  8,701 $               - $                       8,935 $               
Intergovernmental 16,217                585,194              60,365 $             661,776              
      Net total receivables 16,451 $             593,895 $           60,365 $             670,711 $           
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued) 
 
 C. Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 
 

 
  
 
 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary 
government as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Primary Government 

Governmental Activities 
Beginning  
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending  
Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
     Land 100,000 $           100,000 $        
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 100,000 $           - $                       - $                    100,000 $        
Capital assets, being depreciated: 
     Building 733,969 $           7,720 $               741,689 $        
     Equipment 281,764              281,764           
Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,015,733 $        7,720 $               - $                    1,023,453 $     
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
     Building (297,533) $          (24,771) $            (322,304) $      
     Equipment (48,535)               (10,710)               (59,245)           
Total accumulated depreciation (346,068) $          (35,481) $            - $                    (381,549) $      
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 669,665 $           (27,762) $            - $                    641,904 $        
Governmental activities capital assets, net 769,665 $           (27,762) $            - $                    741,904 $        

Governmental Activities 

     General 
government 

8,227 $             
     Health and 
welfare 

            19,562  
     Natural resources and 
conservation 

             2,119 
     
Planning 

5,573              
Total depreciation expense - governmental 
activities 

35,481 $           

Capital assets held by the governments internal service funds are charged to the 
various  functions based on their usage of the 
assets. 



 

 

46 

Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 
 
D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers 
Interfund transfers: 
 

 
 
 
Interfund transfers from the General Fund include program support for the Natural 
Resources Department ($3,603) for General Grant Writing support ($20,000) for 
Computer Equipment Revolving Fund ($20,000); as well as a transfer to the Building 
Operations and Maintenance Fund of ($54,500) to provide funds for operations, repairs, 
maintenance and future building remodeling. 
 
E. Leases 

 
Capital Leases 

 
RVCOG has entered into lease/purchase agreement as lessee for financing the 
acquisition of an office building.  This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease 
for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of 
their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. 

 
The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

  

 

Asset:
Governmental 

Activities
     Land 100,000$             
     Building 741,689               
     Less accumulated depreciation (322,304)              
          Total 519,385$              
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Transfers out: Transfers in: Amount 
General                            $         98,103 Special Revenue 3,603 $                                    
 General Grant Writing 20,000                                   

 
Building Operations and  
Maintenance 54,500                                     
Computer Equipment  
Revolving Fund 20,000                                     

     Total                          $           98,103       98,103 $                                  
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds  (continued) 
 
E. Leases (continued) 

 
The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 
lease payments as of June 30, 2016, were as follows: 

Year ending June 30 
Governmental 

Activities 
2017                   36,466  
2018                   36,466  
2019 36,466 
2020                   18,968 
     Total minimum lease payments            $      128,366  
     Less amount representing interest  $      9,624   
       Present value of minimum lease payments $  118,742  

 
 
 F. Long-term Debt 
 

Changes in long-term liabilities 
 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 
 

 
                      
 
Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds.  Accordingly, 
long-term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for 
governmental activities.  At year-end $456,156 of internal service funds 
compensated absences are included in the above amounts.  Compensated absences 
are generally liquidated by the internal service funds where resources are 
accumulated for that purpose. 

 
 G. Current Debt 
 

RVCOG maintains a line of credit of $250,000 to meet short-term cash flow needs.  This 
line of credit is liquidated as cash resources become available and is not intended to fund 
long-term needs.  RVCOG’s accounts receivable are pledged as collateral for the line of 
credit. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the line of credit was not utilized and the ending 
balance was $0. 

 

Beginning  
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending  
Balance 

Due Within  
One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Capital leases 149,492 $          30,538 $            118,954 $          31,899 $            
Compensated absences 403,615             455,811             403,270             456,156             91,231               
     Governmental activity 
          Long-term liabilities 553,107 $          455,811 $          433,808 $          575,110 $          123,130 $          
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Note 5 - Other information 
 

A. Risk management 
 

RVCOG is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and workers’ 
compensation for which RVCOG’s carries commercial insurance. 
 
There were no claim settlements that exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past 
three years. 

  
B. Contingent liabilities 

 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 
by grantor agencies, principally the State of Oregon.  Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The 
amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 
determined at this time, although RVCOG expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 

 
C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans 

 
Plan Descriptions. The Rogue Valley Council of Governments provides two retirement 
plans for employees, one plan for employer contributions and one plan for employee 
contributions. 
 
Employer contributions are made under a special type of retirement plan commonly 
referred to as a profit sharing plan. This profit sharing plan allows eligible employees to 
receive employer contributions without having to include such amounts in income. The 
employer contribution amount is 13.02% of eligible earnings. The profit sharing plan is 
a defined contribution plan, which is intended to qualify under Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. As a defined contribution plan, it is not covered under Title IV 
of ERISA and, therefore, benefits are not insured by the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation. 
 
Employee contributions are made under a special type of retirement plan commonly 
referred to as a 457 plan. A 457 plan allows employee contributions to be made through 
salary deferrals without having to include such amounts in income. The plan is intended 
to qualify under Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
The plan is a single employer plan administered by John Hancock Life Insurance 
Company.  Stand-alone financial reports are issued to each individual plan participant. 

 
Funding policy.  Both plans are fully funded by transfers directly to employees’ 
accounts at John Hancock through banking transfers processed with each monthly 
payroll. 
 
Annual pension cost.  RVCOG’s current year contributions were calculated based on 
eligible payroll of $2,166,236 resulting in an employer contribution of $282,044. 
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 D.  Post-employment and termination benefits 
 

Post-employment benefits.  RVCOG implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, 
(OPEB) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  RVCOG provides the opportunity for 
retirees to remain on the health and dental insurance plans through a COBRA arrangement 
until they reach age 65.  RVCOG currently has one retiree taking advantage of this 
opportunity, and has determined that the implicit rate subsidy cost for one retiree is 
immaterial. 
 
Termination benefits.  RVCOG’s provides no benefits to terminated employees. 
 
E.  Correction of an Error 
 
RVCOG has determined that a certain transaction was incorrectly included in the 
Governmental Funds General Fund and Special Revenue Fund in a prior year.   
 
In the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance, a loss of $54,121 on the disposal of capital assets was included.  This resulted in an 
overstatement of expenses and an understatement of the ending fund balance of the 
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.  
The error was discovered in the current year.  Accordingly, an adjustment of $54,121 was 
made to the beginning fund balance of the 2016 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance on page 29.          

    

General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Total

Beginning fund balance 411,121$         (432,937)$        (21,816)$          

Adjustment to correct expenditures 33,270             20,851             54,121             

Beginning fund balance, as restated 444,391$         (412,086)$        32,305$           
     

  
F.  Other Reporting Issues 

 

Newly Implemented Accounting Standards 

 

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Issued February 2015, this 
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standard for fair value measurements, 
the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation techniques. GASB Statement No. 72 was 
effective for RVCOG as of fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. The Council anticipates no 
financial impact as a result of implementing this statement.  

 
GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State 
and Local Governments. Issued June, 2015, this statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two  
categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative 
literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not 
specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. There is no financial impact as a result of 
implementing this standard.  

 



 

 

50 

F.  Other Reporting Issues (continued) 
 

New Accounting Pronouncements Upcoming  
 

RVCOG will implement new GASB pronouncements in the fiscal year no later than the 
required effective date. Management has not yet determined the effect on the financial 
statements from implementing any of the following pronouncements:  

 
GASB Statement No. 73 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related 
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.” The statement establishes accounting and financial 
reporting requirements related to pensions provided by governments that are not within the 
scope of GASB Statement No. 68. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2016. Management does not expect this statement to have a financial impact on 
RVCOG.  

 
GASB Statement No. 75 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions.” The statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
requirements related to other postemployment benefits (OPEB), replacing GASB Statements 
No. 45 and No. 57. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. 
Management has not yet determined the financial impact of this statement on the Council.  
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Original Final Actual Amounts

EXPENDITURES

Current:

     Health and welfare

          Senior and disability services 3,753,883$         4,021,915$         3,135,730$         886,185$            

          Senior nutrition program 1,792,583           1,846,404           1,785,343           61,061               

                Total health and welfare 5,546,466$         5,868,319$         4,921,073$         947,246$            

     Natural resources and conservation 403,975$            254,227$            245,070$            9,157$               

          Natural resources 403,975$            254,227$            245,070$            9,157$               

     Planning

          Community development 71,819$             71,819$             302,872$            (231,053)$           

          Transportation planning 1,043,589           1,043,589           612,120             431,469             

          Land use planning 39,406               39,406               104,329             (64,923)              

                Total planning 1,154,814$         1,154,814$         1,019,321$         135,493$            

          Total expenditures 7,105,255$         7,277,360$         6,185,464$         1,091,896$         

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2016 
       

Internal Service Funds 
 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the 
government and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

 
Computer Rental Fund - This fund is used to account for the rental of computers 
to other departments and related costs. 

 
Internal Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation and 
allocation of costs associated with certain administrative functions including: 
finance, personnel, photocopy, mail room, etc. 

 
Building Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Fund - This fund is used to 
account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with building 
operations. 

 
Vehicle Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Fund - This fund is used to account 
for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with vehicle fleet 
operations. 

 
Leave Liability Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources to pay for leave used by employees and to allocate the associated costs 
to the appropriate projects at the time the leave is accrued. 
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Computer  
Rental  
Fund 

Internal  
Service  

Fund 

Building                         
O & M  

Fund 

Vehicle                         
O & M  
Fund 

Leave  
Liability  

Fund Totals 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 94,928 $       180,534 $     410,138 $     72,373 $       (40,863) $      717,110 $        
Receivables -                    60,365          -                    -                    60,365             
Prepaids -                    -                    -                      
Due from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
          Total current assets 94,928 $       240,899 $     410,138 $     72,373 $       (40,863) $      777,475 $        

Long-term assets: 
Capital assets 
    Land - $                 - $                 100,000 $     - $                 100,000 $        
    Buildings -                    -                    741,689        -                    741,689           
    Machinery and equipment -                    -                    14,459          224,128 $     238,587           
    Less accumulated depreciation -                    -                    (322,304)       (59,245)         (381,549)         
          Total capital assets (net of  
accumulated depreciation) - $                 - $                 533,844 $     164,883 $     - $                 698,727 $        
          Total long-term assets - $                 - $                 533,844 $     164,883 $     - $                 698,727 $        

          Total assets 94,928 $       240,899 $     943,982 $     237,256 $     (40,863) $      1,476,202 $     

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and other  
current liabilities 64 $              112,901 $     975 $            891 $            114,831 $        
Uncompensated absences-current  
portion -                    91,231 $       91,231             
Lease/purchase agreement  
payable-current portion -                    31,899          31,899             
          Total current liabilities 64 $              112,901 $     32,874 $       891 $            91,231 $       237,961 $        

Long-term liabilities 
Uncompensated absences-non- 
current portion -                    364,924 $     364,924 $        
Lease/purchase agreement  
payable-non-current portion - $                 87,056 $       87,056             
          Total long-term liabilities - $                 - $                 87,056 $       - $                 364,924 $     451,980 $        

          Total liabilities 64 $              112,901 $     119,932 $     891 $            456,155 $     689,941 $        

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets (net of  
related debt) - $                 401,403 $     175,594 $     (403,615) $    173,382 $        
Unrestricted 94,864 $       127,998 $     422,649 $     60,771 $       (93,403) $      612,879           
         Total net assets 94,864 $       127,998 $     824,052 $     236,365 $     (497,018) $    786,261 $        

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Combining Schedule of Net Position 

All Proprietary Fund Types 
June 30, 2016 
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Computer  
Rental Fund 

Internal  
Service Fund 

Building                         
O & M Fund 

Vehicle                         
O & M Fund 

Leave  
Liability  

Fund Totals 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 
      Charges for services 12,199 $         999,432 $       117,194 $       46,092 $         - $                   1,174,917 $    
      Leave liability accrual charges -                  -                  -                  -                  455,811          455,811          
      Other revenues -                  -                  -                  -                  
          Total operating revenues 12,199 $         999,432 $       117,194 $       46,092 $         455,811 $       1,630,728 $    

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Costs of services 10,069 $         968,481 $       43,783 $         23,661 $         -                  1,045,994 

 
$    

Leave liability costs -                  -                  -                  -                  519,037          519,037          
Depreciation -                  -                  24,771            10,710            -                  35,481            
          Total operating expenses 10,069 $         968,481 $       68,554 $         34,371 $         519,037 $       1,600,512 $    

          Operating income 2,130 $           30,951 $         48,640 $         11,721 $         (63,226) $        30,216 $         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Donations -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Sale of assets -                  
Purchase of assets -                  
Interest expense -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Income before contributions and transfers 2,130 $           30,951 $         48,640 $         11,721 $         (63,226) $        30,216 $         

Capital contributions from government: 
          Contributed fixed asset -                  
Transfers In 20,000            -                  54,500            74,500            
Change in net position 22,130 $         30,951 $         103,140 $       11,721 $         (63,226) $        104,716 $       

Total net assets - beginning 72,734            97,047            720,912          224,644          (433,792)         681,545          

Total net assets - ending 94,864 $         127,998 $       824,052 $       236,365 $       (497,018) $      786,261 $       

Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

All Proprietary Fund Types 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Computer 
Rental Fund

Internal 
Service Fund

Building                        
O & M Fund

Vehicle                        
O & M Fund

Leave 
Liability 

Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from interfund services provided 12,199$       492,449$     117,194$     46,092$       455,811$     1,123,745$  
Receipts from outside services provided 455,915       -                   -                   -                   455,915       
Payments to suppliers (10,069)        (829,644)      (68,555)        (34,371)        -                   (942,639)      
Payments to employees -                   52,541         -                   (519,037)      (466,496)      
          Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 2,130$         171,261$     48,639$       11,721$       (63,226)$      170,525$     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITES
Interfund loans (short-term) -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
Transfers from other funds 20,000         -                   54,500         -                   -                   74,500         
          Net cash (used) provided by noncapital financing 
activities 20,000$       -$                 54,500$       -$                 -$                 74,500$       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITES
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -                   -$                 
Purchase of capital assets for general purposes (7,720)          -               (7,720)          
Principle paid on capital debt -                   -                   (30,538)        -                   -                   (30,538)        
          Net cash used by capital and related financing activities -$                 -$                 (38,258)$      -$                 -$                 (38,258)$      

          Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 22,130$       171,261$     64,881$       11,721$       (63,226)$      206,767$     
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1 75,125         92,812         321,860       50,722         (30,176)        510,343       

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30 94,928$       180,534$     410,138$     72,373$       (40,863)$      717,110$     

Operating income 2,130$         30,951$       48,640$       11,721$       (63,226)$      30,216$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided 
(used) by operating activities:
      Depreciation -$                 -$                 24,772$       10,710$       -$                 35,482$       
      Increase in accounts receivable -                   (51,834)        -                   -                   -                   (51,834)        
      Decrease in prepaids -                   765              -                   -                   -                   765              
      Increase in uncompensated absences -                   -                   -                   -                   52,541         52,541         
      Increase Decrease) in accounts payable (2,327)          107,792       (1,375)          (735)             -                   103,355       
          Total adjustments (2,327)$        56,723$       23,397$       9,975$         52,541$       140,309$     

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (197)$           87,673$       72,037$       21,697$       (10,685)$      170,525$     

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2016 
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments 
Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedules by Source 
June 30, 2016 

  Governmental funds capital assets: 
       Machinery and equipment  $         43,177 

          Total governmental funds capital assets  $         43,177 

  Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source: 
       General fund  $         28,823 

      Special revenue fund  $         14,354  

          Total governmental funds capital assets  $         43,177  

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to 
governmental funds.  Accordingly, the capital assets reported on internal 
service funds are excluded from the above amounts.  Generally, the capital 
assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in 
the statement of net position. 

Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds 
Schedules by Function and Activity 

June 30, 2016 

  
Function and Activity 

Machinery and 
Equipment 

General government: 
       Administration  $           28,823  

          Total general government  $           28,823 

  Health and welfare: 
        Senior nutrition program  $             6,290  

          Total health and welfare  $             6,290  

  Planning: 
       Data processing  $                    -  

          Total planning  $                    - 

  Natural resources and conservation 
       Data processing  $             8,064  

          Total natural resources and conservation  $             8,064  

            Total governmental funds capital assets  $           43,177 

  This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to 
governmental funds.  Accordingly, the capital assets reported on internal 
service funds are excluded from the above amounts.  Generally, the 
capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental 
activities in the statement of net position. 
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Valley Council of Governments 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2016 
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CFDA 
Number

State Contract 
Number

2015-2016 
Disbursements 

Recognized

Aging Cluster*
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B Grants for Supportive 
Services and Senior Centers 93.044 148997 257,762$           
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B Grants for Supportive 
Services and Senior Centers 93.044 148997 2,933                 
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 148997 271,387             
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 148997 514,878             
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 148997 151,183             
          Total Aging Cluster* 1,198,143$        

Support Services
Special Programs for the Aging Title VII, Chapter 3 Programs for 
Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation 93.041 148997 500$                  
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part D Disease Prevention and 
Health Promotion Services 93.043 148997 22,528               
Special Programs for the Aging Title IV and Title II, Discretionary Projects 93.048 AllCare 36,919               
Special Programs for the Aging Title IV and Title II Discretionary Projects 93.048 P rima ry He a lth 1,500                 
Alzheimer's Disease Demonstration Grants to States 93.051 14675 32,315               
National Family Caregiver Support, Title III, Part E 93.052 148997 136,574             
Empowering Older Adults and Adults with Disabilities through Chronic 
Disease Self-Management Education Programs 93.734 141001 47,196               
Affordable Care Act-Aging and Disability Resource Center 93.517 141207 28,188               
          Total Support Services 305,720$           

Medicaid Cluster
     Medical Assistance Program 93.778 148997 69,897$             
     Medical Assistance Program 93.778 148997 3,895$               
     Medical Assistance Program 93.778 142118 621,714             
          Total Medicaid Cluster 695,506$           

Total Department of Health and Human Services 2,199,369$        

2,199,369$        

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
     Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 30724 306,485$           
     Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 30824 109,453$           
     Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 30595 13,300               
          Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 429,238$           

Metropolitan Transportation Planning and State and Non-Metropolitan 
Planning and Research
     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 29102 1,502                 
     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 30050 5,607                 
     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 30431 8,451$               
     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 30824 55,418$             
     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 30724 60,991$             
     Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 30946 12,451$             
          Total Metropolitan Transportation Planning 144,420$           

Total U. S. Department of Transportation 573,658$           

U. S. Department of Transportation

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Oregon Department of Transportation

U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Federal Agency/Program Title/ Pass Through State Agency 

Oregon Department of Human Services -  Senior Services Division

Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
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CFDA 
Number

State Contract 
Number

Disbursements 
Recognized

Supportive Housing Program  Continuim of Care 14.267 OR0047LOE021205 131,196$           

15.657 F14AC00854 1,880$               
Endangered Species Conservation – Recovery Implementation Funds

2,906,103$        Total Federal Financial Assistance

US Department of Fish and Wildlife
U. S. Department of the Interior

*Major program as defined by OMB Uniform Guidance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Federal Agency/Program Title/ Pass Through State Agency 

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 

Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 

for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 

amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.    
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AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES 
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS 

SECTION 
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Action Item 
Appointment of New Member to the Senior Advisory Council 

 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the RVCOG Board approve Erika Bekermeier as a Senior Advisory 
Council (SAC) member effective July 1, 2016.   
 
 
Background: 
 
Erika has an extensive background in Psychology & Mental Health  
Counseling as well as managing and implementing numerous programs in 
the health care field for Employee Assistance Programs and Equal 
Employment Opportunity issues and concerns. She would like to become 
more educated about RVCOG and available senior services in the region.  
She is very interested in supporting and giving back to the community in 
which she lives.   
 
Issues of concern:  She is interested in 1) senior housing, 2) medical 
needs, 3) senior finances, 4) providing resources and referrals,  
5) transportation issues, 6) food and nutrition, and 7) companionship.     
 
Erika also has extensive marketing experience to administrations as well as 
work groups and hopes this experience might add to promotion of local 
senior services and resources.    
 
The Senior Advisory Council voted unanimously at their January 9, 2017 
meeting to recommend her to the RVCOG Board for approval as a SAC 
member. 
 
Recommended By: 
 
Senior Advisory Council 
 
 
 
 



M E D F O R D 
C O M I C  C O N 

APRIL 29, 2017
BE PART OF THE EXCITEMENT!

Vendors | Workshops | Panels | Gaming | Costumes | Contests | Fan Art 
Demonstrations | Music | Food Trucks | Photo Ops | Activities | Face Painting  

CosPlay | Makeup Artists | For All Ages

Be a Vendor
• Sell your products

• Develop a mailing list
• Take orders

• We supply a targeted  
market and customers  

eager to buy

Be a Supporter
• Volunteer

• Donate support funds
• Donate needed materials or 

snacks for staff
• Get your name out in  

the community

Host a Workshop 
or Panel

• Demonstrate your expertise
• Promote your product
• Share your knowledge

• We supply highly interested  
attendees

At the Medford Library & RCC Campus

Jackson County Library Services and Rogue Community College have teamed up to host 
the 3rd Annual Medford Comic Con. 

Be a part of supporting this community event! The Medford Comic Con creates a safe, free, and 
family-friendly space for fans of the arts, technology, and popular culture. It also supports 
Downtown Medford, local businesses and artists, and creators and makers of all types. 

Join us to make this year’s event bigger and better!

http://jcls.org/comiccon

FREE EVENT!



ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

AllCare Health 16-8617 3/31/2016 4/30/2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 635.74 635.74 Behavioral Health 
Emergencies in 
Dementia 
Conference Feb 16

Total AllCare 
Health

0.00 0.00 0.00 635.74 635.74 

City of Ashland 17-8995 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 7,137.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,137.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

17-9040 12/6/2016 1/5/2017 0.00 910.56 0.00 0.00 910.56 Safe Drinking Water 
OCTOBER 2016

17-9051 12/9/2016 1/8/2017 0.00 975.60 0.00 0.00 975.60 Safe Drinking Water 
Project NOVEMBER 
2016

17-9088 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 296.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.78 TAP Utilities 
December 2016

17-9091 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 56.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.46 TAP Financials 
December 2016

Total City of 
Ashland

7,490.24 1,886.16 0.00 0.00 9,376.40 

City of Central 
Point

17-9101 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 Annual Budget 
Request for CP Home 
Delivery 2016/2017

Total City of 
Central Point

12,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 

City of Eagle 
Point

17-8990 12/28/2016 1/27/2017 0.00 2,589.00 0.00 0.00 2,589.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

17-9102 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 EP Senior Meal 
Expenses 2016/2017

Total City of 
Eagle Point

12,000.00 2,589.00 0.00 0.00 14,589.00 

Date: 1/19/17 03:25:48 PM Aged Receivables by Customer for BOARD Page: 1



ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

City of Gold Hill 16-8363 9/30/2015 11/22/2015 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,053.49 1,053.49 Collection System 
SEPTEMBER 2015

17-8988 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 369.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 369.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total City of 
Gold Hill

369.00 0.00 0.00 1,053.49 1,422.49 

City of Grants 
Pass

17-8987 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 8,916.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,916.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total City of 
Grants Pass

8,916.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,916.00 

City of 
Jacksonville

17-8984 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 851.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 851.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total City of 
Jacksonville

851.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 851.00 

City of Medford 17-8983 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 24,217.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,217.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

17-9075 12/19/2016 1/18/2017 0.00 68.71 0.00 0.00 68.71 RVCOG Staff Time 
November 2016

Total City of 
Medford

24,217.00 68.71 0.00 0.00 24,285.71 

City of Phoenix 17-8982 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 1,592.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,592.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

17-9089 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 6,264.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,264.85 TAP Utilities 
December 2016

17-9092 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 56.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.46 TAP Financials 
December 2016

17-9104 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 Phoenix HDM 
2016/2017

Date: 1/19/17 03:25:48 PM Aged Receivables by Customer for BOARD Page: 2



ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

Total City of 
Phoenix

10,913.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,913.31 

City of Rogue 
River

17-9103 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 RR HDM 2016/2017

Total City of 
Rogue River

2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 

City of Shady 
Cove

17-8978 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 904.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 904.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total City of 
Shady Cove

904.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 904.00 

City of Talent 17-9083 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 87.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 87.34 GIS Services Oct, 
Nov, Dec 2016

17-9090 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 56.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.46 TAP Financial 
Services DECEMBER 
2016

Total City of 
Talent

143.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 143.80 

DHS State of 
Oregon

17-9093 11/30/2016 1/31/2017 196,747.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 196,747.00 148/150 November 
2016

Total DHS State 
of Oregon

196,747.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 196,747.00 

ECSO 17-8989 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total ECSO 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

Date: 1/19/17 03:25:48 PM Aged Receivables by Customer for BOARD Page: 3



ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

Jackson Care 
Connect

16-8618 3/31/2016 4/30/2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 635.74 635.74 Behavioral Helath 
Emegencies in 
Dementia 
Conference Feb 16

Total Jackson 
Care Connect

0.00 0.00 0.00 635.74 635.74 

Jackson County 17-8986 12/28/2016 1/27/2017 0.00 20,505.00 0.00 0.00 20,505.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

17-9031 11/3/2016 12/31/2016 0.00 475.00 0.00 0.00 475.00 RVPSA Presentation 
Skills for 
Professionals

Total Jackson 
County

0.00 20,980.00 0.00 0.00 20,980.00 

Jackson County 
Library Distric

17-9107 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 11,827.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,827.69 Services DECEMBER 
2016

Total Jackson 
County Library 
Distric

11,827.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,827.69 

Jackson County 
Library Service

17-9085 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Jackson 
County Library 
Service

309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

Jackson Soil & 
Water

17-8985 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Jackson 
Soil & Water

309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

Date: 1/19/17 03:25:48 PM Aged Receivables by Customer for BOARD Page: 4



ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

Jacksonville Sr 
Cntr

17-9014 11/18/2016 12/18/2016 0.00 0.00 1,090.54 0.00 1,090.54 Meal Site Expenses 
OCTOBER 2016

17-9048 12/9/2016 1/9/2017 0.00 997.98 0.00 0.00 997.98 Meal Site Expenses 
NOVEMBER 2016

17-9108 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 1,123.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,123.76 Meal Site Expenses 
DECEMBER 2016

Total 
Jacksonville Sr 
Cntr

1,123.76 997.98 1,090.54 0.00 3,212.28 

Josephine County 17-8993 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 17,793.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,793.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Josephine 
County

17,793.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,793.00 

Mulnomah Co 
Aging, Disab, & 
Ve

17-9081 12/28/2016 1/27/2017 0.00 1,823.36 0.00 0.00 1,823.36 November 2016 
ADVS Funds Request

Total Mulnomah 
Co Aging, Disab, 
& Ve

0.00 1,823.36 0.00 0.00 1,823.36 

ODOT - Mike 
Baker

17-9068 12/14/2016 1/13/2017 0.00 698.46 0.00 0.00 698.46 November 2016 
RVACT #30595

17-9110 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 125.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 125.82 December 2016 Rent 
and Expenses

17-9111 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 35,783.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,783.37 RVMPO December 
2016 #31341

17-9113 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 9,089.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,089.94 MRMPO December 
2016 #31340

Total ODOT - 
Mike Baker

44,999.13 698.46 0.00 0.00 45,697.59 
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ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

Oregon SDS 15-8157 6/30/2015 7/30/2015 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.97 1.97 SDS Expenses JUNE 
2015

17-9026 11/21/2016 12/21/2016 0.00 0.00 5,805.69 0.00 5,805.69 State Training by 
DDRV OCTOBER 2016

17-9029 11/30/2016 12/30/2016 0.00 2,266.71 0.00 0.00 2,266.71 PSW Orientation 
Expenses NOVEMBER 
2016

Total Oregon 
SDS

0.00 2,266.71 5,805.69 1.97 8,074.37 

Partners in 
Community 
Living

17-9105 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 580.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 580.68 Utilities Billing 
DECEMBER 2016

Total Partners in 
Community 
Living

580.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 580.68 

Rogue 
Community 
College

17-8997 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Rogue 
Community 
College

309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

Rogue River 
Watershed 
Council

17-9045 11/1/2016 1/6/2017 0.00 74.40 0.00 0.00 74.40 Kids and Creek 
Signage Costs

Total Rogue 
River Watershed 
Council

0.00 74.40 0.00 0.00 74.40 

Rogue Valley 
Sewer Services

17-8980 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017
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ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

Total Rogue 
Valley Sewer 
Services

309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

Rogue Valley 
Trans. District

17-8979 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Rogue 
Valley Trans. 
District

309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

SOREDI 17-8976 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

17-9106 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 3,265.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,265.20 Accounting Services 
DECEMBER 2016

Total SOREDI 3,574.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,574.20 

Southern 
Oregon 
University

17-8996 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Southern 
Oregon 
University

309.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 

Town of Butte 
Falls

17-8994 12/28/2016 2/27/2017 152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152.00 Dues for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017

Total Town of 
Butte Falls

152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152.00 

US Dept of 
Housing & Urban 
Dev

17-9112 12/31/2016 2/18/2017 11,800.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,800.66 December 2016 
Services
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ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Aged Receivables by Due Date

Aging Date - 2/28/2017

From 7/1/2015 Through 1/31/2017

Name
Customer 

Number
Invoice 

Date
Invoice 

Due Date Due
Days Past 
1 - 30 

Due
Days Past 
31 - 60 

Due
Days Past 
61 - 90 

Due
Days Past 
Over 90 

Total Description
Invoice 

Total US Dept of 
Housing & Urban 
Dev

11,800.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,800.66 

Report Total 371,065.47 31,384.78 6,896.23 2,326.94 411,673.42 
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ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Balance Sheet

As of 12/31/2016

Prior Year To Date
Current Year 

Assets and Other Debits

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,500,015.60 1,475,702.97 

Accounts Receivable 541,350.23 445,188.82 

Prepaid Expenses 16,497.67 (8,417.19)

Total Current Assets 2,057,863.50 1,912,474.60 

Other Debits

Fixed Assets 752,166.47 745,251.00 

Total Other Debits 752,166.47 745,251.00 

Total Assets and Other Debits 2,810,029.97 2,657,725.60 

Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 178,387.46 212,015.86 

Payroll Payable 293,362.07 338,942.26 

Due To Other Funds (305.37) 0.00 

Total Current Liabilities 471,444.16 550,958.12 

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Revenues 135,914.29 121,511.71 

Deposits Held for Others 512,945.42 515,792.83 

Compensated Absences Payable 293,266.99 304,402.19 

Due To Other Agencies and Governments 14,547.00 0.00 

Bonds Payable 149,492.31 118,954.30 

Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,669.30 1,669.30 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,107,835.31 1,062,330.33 

Fund Equities and Other Credits:

Contributed Capital 162,735.24 162,735.24 

Beginning Fund Balance 593,316.49 832,984.38 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Fund Balance 474,698.77 48,717.53 

Total Fund Equities and Other Credits: 1,230,750.50 1,044,437.15 

Total Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits 2,810,029.97 2,657,725.60 
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ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 7/1/2016 Through 12/31/2016

Budget
Total Annual 

To Date Actual
Current Year 

Variance
YTD Budget 

Remaining
Budget 

Percent Total 

Revenues minus Expenses

Total Revenues

Grants & Contracts 110 6,251,735.00 2,667,282.72 (3,584,452.28) (57.34)%

Local Dues 120 132,379.00 132,378.00 (1.00) (0.00)%

Other Revenues 130 865,870.00 460,130.67 (405,739.33) (46.86)%

Private Grants & Contracts 140 8,975.00 95,792.54 86,817.54 967.33%

Indirect Charges Received 150 447,663.00 194,392.42 (253,270.58) (56.58)%

Interfund Transfers 160 119,820.00 54,750.06 (65,069.94) (54.31)%

Interfund Charges 165 840,143.00 591,575.54 (248,567.46) (29.59)%

Beginning Fund Balance 170 70,000.00 0.00 (70,000.00) (100.00)%

Total Total Revenues 8,736,585.00 4,196,301.95 (4,540,283.05) (51.97)%

Total Expenses

Personal Services 210 (3,864,096.00) (1,891,688.82) 1,972,407.18 (51.04)%

Supplies & Materials 220 (61,812.00) (51,128.07) 10,683.93 (17.28)%

Purchased Services 225 (2,777,343.00) (1,547,911.38) 1,229,431.62 (44.27)%

Capital Outlay 230 (73,913.00) (13,969.21) 59,943.79 (81.10)%

Depreciation 240 (25,000.00) (19,654.61) 5,345.39 (21.38)%

Debt Service 250 (39,502.00) (18,233.22) 21,268.78 (53.84)%

Indirect Charges 260 (451,622.00) (194,414.92) 257,207.08 (56.95)%

Interfund Transfers 270 (119,820.00) (54,750.06) 65,069.94 (54.31)%

Interfund Charges 275 (934,669.00) (358,824.13) 575,844.87 (61.61)%

Contingnency 280 (388,808.00) (15,000.00) 373,808.00 (96.14)%

Total Total Expenses (8,736,585.00) (4,165,574.42) 4,571,010.58 (52.32)%

Total Revenues minus Expenses 0.00 30,727.53 30,727.53 0.00%
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